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Dear Petitioner: 

 

This is in reference to your application for correction of your naval record pursuant to Title 10, 

United States Code, Section 1552.  After careful and conscientious consideration of relevant 

portions of your naval record and your application, the Board for Correction of Naval Records 

(Board) found the evidence submitted insufficient to establish the existence of probable material 

error or injustice.  Consequently, your application has been denied.     

 

Although you did not file your application in a timely manner, the statute of limitation was 

waived in accordance with the 25 August 2017 guidance from the Office of the Under Secretary 

of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (Kurta Memo).  A three-member panel of the Board, 

sitting in executive session, considered your application on 15 April 2024.  The names and votes 

of the panel members will be furnished upon request.  Your allegations of error and injustice 

were reviewed in accordance with administrative regulations and procedures applicable to the 

proceedings of the Board.  Documentary material considered by the Board consisted of your 

application together with all material submitted in support thereof, relevant portions of your 

naval record,  applicable statutes, regulations, and policies, to include the Kurta Memo, the 

3 September 2014 guidance from the Secretary of Defense regarding discharge upgrade requests 

by Veterans claiming post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)/mental health condition (MHC) 

(Hagel Memo), and the 25 July 2018 guidance from the Under Secretary of Defense for 

Personnel and Readiness regarding equity, injustice, or clemency determinations (Wilkie 

Memo).  The Board also considered the advisory opinion (AO) furnished by a qualified mental 

health professional, dated 23 February 2024, and your response to the AO. 

 

Regarding your request for a personal appearance, the Board determined that a personal 

appearance with or without counsel will not materially add to their understanding of the issue(s) 

involved.  Therefore, the Board determined that a personal appearance was not necessary and 

considered your case based on the evidence of record. 

 

You enlisted in the Navy and began a period of active duty on 9 December 1992.  During your 

enlistment process, you acknowledged and signed the Navy’s Drug and Alcohol Abuse Statement 

of Understanding.  On 9 December 1993, you began a period of unauthorized absence (UA) 
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which lasted one-day.  On 24 September 1993, you received nonjudicial punishment (NJP) for a 

period of UA, and failure to obey a lawful order from a superior officer.  On 14 October 1993, 

you received a second NJP for wrongful use of a controlled substance-marijuana.  Consequently, 

you were notified of the initiation of administrative separation proceedings by reason of 

misconduct due to drug abuse, at which point you decided to waive your procedural rights.  Your 

commanding officer recommended an Other Than Honorable (OTH) discharge characterization 

of service by reason of misconduct due to drug abuse.  The separation authority approved the 

recommendation and ordered an OTH discharge characterization by reason of misconduct due to 

drug abuse.  On 2 November 1993, you were so discharged.  

 

The Board carefully considered all potentially mitigating factors to determine whether the 

interests of justice warrant relief in your case in accordance with the Kurta, Hagel, and Wilkie 

Memos.  These included, but were not limited to, your desire for a discharge upgrade and 

contentions that: (a) you have been seeking help from multiple therapist, but was not until you 

were recommended to see a PTSD therapist that you realized how serious your issues, (b) you 

witnessed your friend getting killed in a motorcycle accident and the mental impact of that 

incident caused you to be afraid to ride your bike back to base, (c) you decided to consume 

alcohol following that incident and believe you have never been able to stop drinking since then, 

(d) you were constantly drunk to the point that it was affecting your appearance and overall 

performance, (e) you began using your entire paycheck and other funds to buy alcohol, (f) you 

witnessed another motorcycle accident and decided to stay away from motorcycles and kept 

focusing on consuming alcohol, (g) you ran out of money for alcohol and decided to smoke 

marijuana, (h) you were diagnosed with bipolar disorder and were prescribed ineffective anti-

depressants, and (i) you are requesting an upgrade with the intent to seek Department of Veterans 

Affairs assistance.  For purposes of clemency and equity consideration, the Board noted you 

submitted copies of your own individual statement, a friend’s obituary, an excerpt from your 

military record, and volunteer work documentation.  

 

As part of the Board’s review, the Board considered the AO.  The AO stated in pertinent part: 

 

There is no evidence that he was diagnosed with a mental health condition in 

military service, or that he exhibited any psychological symptoms or behavioral 

changes indicative of a diagnosable mental health condition. He has provided no 

medical evidence in support of his claims. Unfortunately, his personal statement is 

not sufficiently detailed to establish clinical symptoms in service or provide a nexus 

with his misconduct, particularly given pre-service behavior that appears to have 

continued in service. Additional records (e.g., post-service mental health records 

describing the Petitioner’s diagnosis, symptoms, and their specific link to his 

misconduct) may aid in rendering an alternate opinion.  

 

The AO concluded, “it is my clinical opinion there is insufficient evidence of a diagnosis of 

PTSD that may be attributed to military service.  There is insufficient evidence to attribute 

his misconduct to PTSD.” 

 






